
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

13 January 2021 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the  
Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee on 

Thursday, 21st January, 2021 at 6.30 pm 
 

This will be a meeting held in line with The Local Authorities & Police & Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority & Police & Crime Panel Meetings) England & 

Wales) Regulations 2020. 
 

This meeting will be held virtually via Zoom and streamed live 
via:  www.mybostonuk.com/youtube 

 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor George Cornah 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Deborah Evans 
 Councillors Tom Ashton, Alan Bell, Anton Dani, Anne Dorrian, 

Martin Howard MSc. PCGM, Cert Ed, Frank Pickett, Judith Skinner, 
Judith Welbourn and Stephen Woodliffe 

 

A G E N D A 
 

PART I – PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 12) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meetings, held on 15th October and 12th 
November 2020. 

Public Document Pack

http://www.mybostonuk.com/youtube


 

B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes (if any). 
 

C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Monday 18th January 2021. 
 
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  
 

 To consider resolving - That under Section 100(A)(iv) of the Local Government Act 
1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) 
Order 2006, the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Order. 
 

2   PUBLIC SECTOR PARTNERSHIP SERVICES (PSPS) PROPOSAL  
(Pages 13 - 54) 
 

 (A report by Phil Perry, Assistant Director – Support Services & Partnerships) 
 

 
 

 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Tel. no: 01205 314227  
email: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Tel. no: 01205 
314227  email: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk as soon as possible. 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 

 



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

15 October 2020 

Present: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe (Chairman), Councillor George 
CornahCouncillors Peter Bedford, Alan Bell, Anton Dani, Neill Hastie, 
Martin Howard MSc. PCGM, Cert Ed and Judith Skinner 
 
In attendance: Councillor Paul Goodale  
 
Officers –  
Assistant Director - Assets, Assistant Director – Organisation and Corporate Services, 
Council Tax and Benefits Manager, Improvement Development Service Manager and 
Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 
48   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 27th August 2020 were agreed as a correct record 
and would be signed by the Chairman.   
 
49   APOLOGIES 

 
There were apologies for absence from Councillors Tom Ashton, Anne Dorrian, Deborah 
Evans and Frank Pickett.  Councillor Judith Skinner was substituting for Councillor 
Pickett.  Councillors Peter Bedford and Martin Howard were attending to fill the two 
vacant Independent Group seats. 
 
50   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
None. 
 
51   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
None. 
 
52   COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME - 2021/22 

 
The Council Tax and Benefits Manager presented a report, which detailed the 
introduction and the operation of the Council Tax Support scheme to date, provided an 
update on the process now being undertaken and set out the options being put forward 
for consultation, prior to the formal approval of the 2021/22 scheme by Council in 
January 2021.  
 
The Committee was asked to review the scheme to date and three proposed options, 
and then make recommendations on the scheme for the year 2021/22 for Cabinet 
consideration prior to Council approval in January 2021. 
 
The proposed options were: 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item A



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
15 October 2020 
 

Option 1 
 
Continuation of the current scheme, uprating the amounts used in the calculation of 
Council Tax Support for working-age claimants in line with Department for Work and 
Pensions Uprating for working-age social security benefits and non-dependant 
deductions. 
 
Option 2 
 
Uprate in line with the Department of Work and Pensions Uprating for working-age 
social security benefits and non-dependant deductions, but assess working-age 
applicants who were working and in receipt of Universal Credit every 3 months, though if 
an applicant had a significant change in their income within the 3-month period, the case 
should be reassessed. 
 
Option 3 
 
Continuation of 2020/21 scheme, but not apply any uprating. 
 
In response to Members’ questions and observations, the Council Tax and Benefits 
Manager explained that there had been an increase in the number of claims for Council 
Tax Support since the start of the pandemic. However, the caseload remained quite 
static, as some did not qualify for support and clients were continuously starting and 
ending entitlement to support. 
 
All changes in clients’ income, e.g. because clients were on furlough, were taken into 
account. Council Tax Support was a means tested benefit.  A client’s income and capital 
were taken into account, but mortgage payments were not. Officers were keeping a 
watching brief on the increase in the number of claims and this information was included 
in the monthly monitoring report to Members.  Applications could be made for Universal 
Credit and/or Council Tax Support. If a person was unemployed they should definitely 
apply. 
 
Option 2, contained in the report, would result in slightly less work for officers. Currently, 
cases were reassessed cases every month as a result of changes in clients’ 
circumstances.  This meant clients did not receive a consistent amount of support, as a 
new bill could be issued every month. Option 2 would mean that income was more 
consistent and fewer new bills would be required, as reassessment would only take 
place every three months. If income changed significantly then it would be reassessed. 
 
[Councillor Paul Goodale joined the meeting at 6.45 pm.] 
 
In addition, clients could ask for their benefit to be reassessed at any time. Officers 
worked from information supplied by the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) from 
a person’s Universal Credit claim. 
 
Officers were preparing for an increase in claims due to the end of the Government’s 
furlough scheme and, although the impact of this could not be predicted, they would 
prepare for the worst-case scenario. 
 

Page 2



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
15 October 2020 

 

Members’ comments included satisfaction with explanations, particularly that Option 2 
would not cause clients extra financial difficulty, and that, if there were additional claims, 
the Council would have extra capacity to cope with this. 
 
Clients provided wages slips to prove changes in their wages and proof of income and 
capital.  It was the clients’ responsibility to inform the Council of any changes, and the 
DWP advised the Council of any changes to UC. Option 1, the current scheme, meant 
support was assessed every month or when there was a change of circumstances, 
when meant a new letter/bill would be issued. 
 

RESOLVED: That Option 2, as set out in the report, be recommended to Cabinet 
for consideration for the Council Tax Support Scheme for the year 2021/22 prior to 
Full Council approval in January 2021. 

 

 
53   WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 

 
The Assistant Director – Organisation and Corporate Services presented a draft 
Workforce Development Strategy, which provided a holistic framework for how the 
organisation developed its culture, working practices and people. 
 
The proposed Workforce Development Strategy was attached at Appendix A.  The 
strategy had been developed in consultation with the Leadership Team, Managers 
across the alliance, the Employee Reference Group and Union representatives. 
 
The need for a Workforce Development Strategy was highlighted in the LGA Peer 
Review that took place in 2019 and was a key recommendation to the Council. 
 
The themes identified in the Strategy were: 
 

a) Attract and retain talented employees 
b) A flexible approach to service delivery 
c) A healthy and active workforce 
d) Shape our organisational culture and maximise staff engagement 
e) Be efficient and effective in all we do 
f) Celebrate our success and reward excellence 

 
To enable the Strategy’s delivery, and ensure it was well embedded across the 
workforce, a Workforce Development Board would be formed of relevant officers, which 
would be responsible for ensuring the Strategy was delivered. External representatives 
might be invited to join the Board for specific themes where they might add value.  
 
Once the Committee’s feedback was received, it would be considered by the Portfolio 
Holder before the Strategy was taken to Cabinet for consideration on 21st October. 
 
The Strategy’s success would be measured via the indicators identified within the 
document and these would be reported via the Performance Framework.   
 

Page 3



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
15 October 2020 
 

The adoption of a Workforce Development Strategy was necessary to support and guide 
employee development across the alliance; and the Committee’s views were sought to 
further shape the final Strategy. 
 

Members asked a range of questions and received assurance that: 
 

 Staff and unions had been consulted on the document via the employee 
reference group, which represented all services across Boston and East Lindsey 
Councils, and their views had been fed into the strategy; 

 

 There was no need for funding at this stage and business cases would be drafted 
to back up any future funding needs;  

 

 Discussion of potential funding from unions would take place at future meetings 
of the Joint Consultative Committee;  

 

 The strategy was adaptive and relevant to all employees including office-based 
and non-office based staff;  

 

 The strategy provided a focussed and planned way of investing in staff 
development;  
 

 The aim was to put in place succession plans for all staff and look to ensure there 
was a way forward to employment for Apprentices;  

 

 Feedback from staff signing up for the Future Leaders programme had been very 
positive;  

 

 It was planned to undertake work to establish a graduate programme; 
 

 The strategy had no connection to the offer of provision of back office services 
from PSPS. 

 
On conclusion of discussion, the strategy was commended as user-friendly, clear and 
concise. 
 
It was agreed that reference to “team achievement” would be added to the bullet points 
of what success would look like in terms of the strategic theme “Attract and Retain 
Talented Employees”. 
 

RESOLVED: That the Workforce Development Strategy be recommended to 
Cabinet for approval with the Committee’s comments. 

 
54   ANNUAL SCRUTINY REPORT 

 
The Committee considered the Annual Scrutiny Report for 2019/20, drafted by the 
Democratic Services Officer and covering the work of both Scrutiny Committees, before 
its submission to Full Council for approval for publication. 
 

Page 4



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
15 October 2020 

 

The Chairman considered that the report skilfully illustrated the excellent work of both 
Committees, which had received a High Assurance rating from the Internal Auditors. 
 
The report would also be considered by the Environment & Performance Committee 
before its submission to Full Council. 
 
The report was fully supported. 
 

RESOLVED: That the Annual Scrutiny Report 2019/20 be recommended to Full 
Council for approval for publication. 

 
55   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Members discussed various suggestions for future agenda items and agreed to receive 
a report at a future meeting on food safety assurance work throughout the pandemic 
from the Environmental Health Manager. 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting Closed at 8.20 pm 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

12 November 2020 

Present: Councillor George Cornah (Chairman), Councillor Deborah Evans (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Tom Ashton, Alan Bell, Anton Dani, Anne Dorrian, 
Martin Howard MSc. PCGM, Cert Ed, Frank Pickett, Judith Skinner, Judith Welbourn 
and Stephen Woodliffe 
 
Officers –  
Assistant Director - Assets, Economic Development Manager and Senior Democratic 
Services Officer 
 
56   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 1st October 2020 were agreed as a correct record to 
be signed by the Chairman. 
 
57   APOLOGIES 

 
None. 
 
58   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
None. 
 
59   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
None. 
 
60   PORT OF BOSTON - GATEWAY TO GROWTH 

 
The Economic Development Manager presented a report, which provided information 
regarding development of the project "Port of Boston - Gateway to Growth" and its 
impact on both the local and regional economies, its international significance and its 
ability to influence and enhance the prospects of Boston and raise the aspirations for 
future generations. 
 
The Committee was asked to note the following recommendations, to be submitted to 
Cabinet for approval at its meeting on 2nd December: 
 
(i) To provide financial support to the Midlands Connect feasibility study of not more 

than £20,000; and 
 
(ii) To allocate a budget to the Deputy Chief Executive for the purpose of supporting 

ongoing project development. 
 
Any other comments that the Committee might have would also be reported to Cabinet 
by the Deputy Chief Executive (Place). 
 
The recommendations were required to demonstrate to the Council’s partner, 
Lincolnshire County Council (LCC), the support of the Council to the Midlands Connect 

Page 7



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
12 November 2020 
 

feasibility study and to provide ongoing support for project initiation and development. 
Without this funding, the project would not be able to progress to the next stage and 
LCC would not support a Midlands Connect submission. 
 
There were 40,000 jobs within South East Lincolnshire linked to the logistics industry. 
Whilst the majority of key employers were based in SHDC’s area, many Boston 
residents commuted to work with those employers. This project, through seeking 
improvement in the road infrastructure, would help keep those employers based in the 
area and some success had already been seen through the agreement of LCC to submit 
a Midlands Connect feasibility scheme. 
 
In addition, this project was not simply about preserving existing jobs, but also creating 
the environment for continued growth and prosperity, not just for Boston, but the wider 
geographical area, and indeed the wider UKPLC agenda, which would lead to an 
increase in employment opportunities, including higher skilled employment. 
 
South Lincolnshire was on the cusp of significant growth. The Port of Boston - Gateway 
to Growth project provided an opportunity for Boston to facilitate and lead on the further 
development of this project and directly link into other major projects that were taking 
place within the region to ensure that Boston, as a Borough, was included in the 
projected outcomes of those projects, for the wider benefit of the communities. 
 

Members voiced appreciation for the hard work undertaken by officers and supported 
the aims and ambitions of the project. The project was described as exciting and an 
opportunity to bring together the funding needed. It was considered a great advantage 
that the port had a rail connection that could be enhanced and had the potential to 
expand, bringing material closer to the food-processing industry.  Although in its early 
stages, this ambitious project was very promising.  
 
Members asked various questions including the timescale for the project, details of the 
town’s rival ports in terms of the project’s aims and Boston’s advantages. 
 
In response, the Economic Development Manager explained that a project of this scale 
took time. The port was fully functioning and the port authority was keen to begin on the 
project. The project was reliant to some extent on the port widening its gate. However, 
the aim was to expedite the project as quickly as possible with partners. The effect of 
Brexit and the costs of importers with containers in Amsterdam incurring charges were 
also important considerations. All partners were on board and were aware of the 
timescales and what was required and the process was ongoing.  Talks with Midlands 
Connect would be progressed regarding roads and with colleagues in Grantham 
regarding national bottlenecks.  Talks were also being held with National Rail.  
 
Most of Boston’s rival ports were on the east and south coast.  They were more 
advantageously positioned and had better infrastructure; however, they tended to be 
categorised into sectors. All ports dealt with food to some extent, but none were 
dedicated to it; therefore, there was a gap in the market.  In addition, the ports were 
becoming congested. Boston was central to the UK market and many products were 
produced in the East Midlands, so officers were confident the project could be delivered 
despite this being a very competitive industry.  The majority of funding went to major 
cities, but Boston had already received a small amount of funding. 
 

Page 8



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
12 November 2020 

 

If trade became international, the port would have to pay taxes for ships. Ports paid 
import taxes and duties anyway.  However, they would also make disembarkation 
charges; therefore the larger it became and the higher-grade stock it dealt with, the 
busier the port would be and the more jobs it would provide.  
 
With respect to food going from the land to distribution centres and then to 
supermarkets, the Economic Development Manager explained that this process was 
driven by the supermarkets. However, along with partners, they were looking to the 
growth of the port and the clustering of businesses around it. 
 
A Member expressed satisfaction with the aim to bring together support from LCC in 
terms of the bid for a Midlands Connect feasibility study, describing it as a vote of 
confidence in the economic drivers and facilities in Boston.  The borough was open for 
business and it would benefit from the development of jobs and prosperity. 
 
The Portfolio Holder then addressed the Committee and described the long process and 
hard work undertaken by officers to bring the project to this stage. Officers had 
established links to colleges and businesses, as well as transport, infrastructure and 
logistics companies. These partners had stressed how impressed they were with the 
level of work that the Council wanted to develop with them. The project was much bigger 
than the port; it was all about repurposing the town and using the road and rail links it 
had, and its workforce and infrastructure. It was a long-term project. The Economic 
Development Manager and the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) had identified this gap in 
the market. The Council was facilitating all of this, bringing partners together on a very 
low budget and doing tremendous work. 
 
In response to questions, the Portfolio Holder confirmed that reference to jobs in South 
Holland when listing relevant facts, did not imply that any were at risk. 
 
[Councillor Deborah Evans joined the meeting at 7:15 pm.] 
 
The Economic Development Manager stated that the port would be widened by Spring 
2022. New technology would help and the footprint could be improved by better use of 
its width.  Some of the Council’s commercial partners and businesses had Dutch 
connections, so officers had communicated with them through third parties. The 
Economic Development Manager and the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) served on the 
Steering Group, which had no political involvement; it was purely a commercial venture 
with commercial partners.  
 
Four subgroups had been set up. Officers would serve on the Logistics and Trade and 
Inward Investment subgroups. The Deputy Leader would be involved with the UK Food 
Valley and Research, Innovation and Skills subgroups, which would also have political 
influence from South Holland District Council and LCC.  
 
A Member pointed out that the port was tidal and not deep and, therefore, could not be 
as strong as other ports such as Felixstowe and suggested the Council also give 
attention to other projects.  In addition, it was asserted that Boston’s links with the USA 
and its offer of low-cost housing and excellent schools should be promoted; these were 
all assets. 
 

Page 9



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
12 November 2020 
 

The Portfolio Holder explained that this was only one of several projects and that 
promotion of the area’s links with Boston, USA was now contained within one of the 
Council’s new corporate priorities in order to put Boston on the map. 
 
One Member voiced objection to the proposal for the Council to make a contribution to 
the bid for the Midlands Connect feasibility study, on the grounds that responsibility for 
highways lay with LCC, and spoke against funding the project from the Transformation 
Fund, on the grounds that it was not for this purpose, and, therefore, would not 
supporting the recommendations. 
 
Other Members spoke in support of the Council contribution, feeling that £20,000 would 
open up an enormous opportunity for the town.  
 
Thanks were expressed to the team for the work they had done and were continuing to 
do.  The project was exciting and positive and would help keep young people in the 
area. 
 

Action: CG 
Advise Members of the figure of Lincolnshire County Council’s proposed contribution to 
the Midlands Connect feasibility study. 

 
It was then proposed and seconded that the recommendations be noted and supported 
and also that the Committee’s thanks to the officers and their team be recorded.  This 
was carried with one vote against. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
1. That the following recommendations to Cabinet be noted and supported: 
 
(i) To provide financial support to the Midlands Connect feasibility study of not 

more than £20,000; and 
 
(ii) To allocate a budget to the Deputy Chief Executive for the purpose of 

supporting ongoing project development. 
 
2. That the Committee’s thanks be given to the Economic Development Manager, 

the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) and the members of their team for their 
hard work and achievements with respect to this project. 

 

 
 
61   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Members considered the Committee’s work programme. 
 
Members discussed the best time to receive an update on homelessness and it was 
generally felt that this should be timed for the February meeting.     
 

Page 10



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
12 November 2020 

 

The Assistant Director explained that the Committee would receive a report on the role 
taken by Environmental Health throughout the pandemic and the impact of the 
suspension of food safety visits.  
 
Members also considered a suggestion that the Committee should receive a report on 
the impact of the pandemic on services generally and the Council’s response to it.  An 
additional meeting could be arranged, perhaps held jointly with ELDC, in order to 
scrutinise the corporate response to the pandemic and the lessons learned.  
 
The Assistant Director explained that these were information items, but he would 
discuss the suggestions with officers and report back to Members. 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting Closed at 8.10 pm 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 13

Agenda Item 2
By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 37

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 53

By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	CCC Minutes of 12th November 2020

	2 PUBLIC SECTOR PARTNERSHIP SERVICES (PSPS) PROPOSAL
	Appendix A - PSPS – Boston Borough Council Business case & Financial Proposal
	Appendix B - PSPS People Services Plan
	Appendix C - Professional views of the PSPS Proposal from affected Services


